
Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

1 

 

 
MINUTES OF MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA  

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
The Board of Commissioners of Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, met in Special Meeting 
Session- CMS Budget Request in the Valerie C. Woodard Conference Center, 3205 Freedom Drive, 
Charlotte, North Carolina, at 2:31 p.m. on Wednesday, May 8, 2024.  
 
 
 
 

ATTENDANCE 
 
Present:  Vice-Chair Mark Jerrell, and Commissioners Leigh Altman,  

Patricia “Pat” Cotham, Arthur Griffin, Elaine Powell,  
Vilma D. Leake, Laura J Meier,  
and Susan Rodriguez- McDowell 
County Manager Dena R. Diorio 
County Attorney Tyrone C. Wade 
Clerk to the Board Kristine M. Smith 
Deputy Clerk to the Board Arlissa Eason 
 

Absent:  Chair George Dunlap 
 ____________________ 
 
     -INFORMAL SESSION- 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
The meeting was called to order by Vice Chair Jerrell, followed by introductions and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag. 
 
24-0276 CHARLOTTE-MECKLENBURG SCHOOLS FY2025 BUDGET REQUEST 
 
Commissioner Elaine Powell joined the meeting at 2:44 p.m. 
 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

2 

 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

3 

 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

4 

 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

5 

 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

6 

 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

7 

 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

8 

 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

9 

 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

10 

 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

11 

 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

12 

 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

13 

 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

14 

 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

15 

 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

16 

 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

17 

 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

18 

 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

19 

 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

20 

 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

21 

 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

22 

 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

23 

 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

24 

 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

25 

 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

26 

 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

27 

 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

28 

 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

29 

 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

30 

 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

31 

 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

32 

 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

33 

 

 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

34 

 

Comments: 
Commissioner Griffin thanked them. He said it was the worst budget in 30 years regarding 
student achievement. He said academic excellence hadn’t been achieved. He asked why there 
were still blanks if the budget supported the outcomes they anticipated. Dr. Hill said they 
presented expansion. She said that in February, they went through a list of asks. She said they 
could review what was working and what wasn’t and said the expansion request showed what 
they couldn’t do with their current budget. She said the quality of the teacher showed academic 
expansion. She said they classified it as the best budget. She said in terms of goals – she said as 
he was a former Board of Education member, he knew the State changed the goal post every 5 
years, and it was impossible to compare to 10 years ago.  
 
Commissioner Cotham agreed with Commissioner Griffin and wanted to see more improvement in 
the children’s scores and reading. She wished they had engaged more with the Board and the 
community and said education was the key to everything. She said African American kids were in 
schools that weren’t meeting their needs and that she wished pay was a priority.  Dr. Hill said they 
held multiple engagement sessions for the public and an online session. She said they could work on 
meeting with commissioners if desired. She said she and County Manager Diorio planned the 
meeting in February. She said all reading and math scores improved, along with other scores.  
 
Commissioner Leake thanked them for the presentation. She said she was concerned about the 
quality of staffing and the basics to get them started. She also thanked the Superintendent for 
meeting with school leaders of universities and colleges. Chief Strategy and Innovation Officer Beth 
Thompson further clarified Commissioner Leake’s concerns, stating that it would take new and 
innovative ways to address these issues. 
 
Commissioner Meier thanked them for the presentation. She said she thought it was wonderful to 
see the numbers increase. She thanked them for their work. She thanked County Manager Diorio 
for supporting teacher supplements. She said teachers don’t teach to make money but must make 
money to get by. She asked about Page 47 and the 30 projects passed in the bond. She asked if it 
was above that. Kelly Kluttz, Chief Financial Officer said it was not including the 30, but the next 
phase.  
 
Commissioner Meier asked if the projects went into the CIP. County Manager Diorio said they were 
more capital maintenance items like roofs and other repairs.  
 
Commissioner Meier asked when the first round would start. Brian Schultz, Chief Operations 
Officer, said the first round of repairs was requested for that budget cycle and that they would 
begin the work as soon as possible. He also added that over 600 items had been identified.  
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked the difference between last year and the current year, 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

35 

 

comparing $38.9 million (6.98 increase) versus $42 million (7.1% increase). She asked if it was a 
normal amount and if they should expect to see it every year. Ms. Kluttz said if looking at salaries 
only, it was well over 50% of the ask. She said the State sets the salary increases. She said they were 
not really expanding, only maintaining what they were currently doing. She said they were recycling 
and reutilizing State dollars and trying to maximize the resources the Board had given them. She 
said the majority of the ask was sustaining. 
 
Commissioner Altman asked about the last projection of growth revenue. Adrian Cox, Budget 
Director, said it was $56 million. 
 
Commissioner Altman asked if they remembered the increased expenses for the previous year. Mr. 
Cox said he could get that information for her. 
 
Commissioner Powell thanked them for their commitment to education.  She said she loved Priority 
1 and was protective of one-time funding. She asked them to talk about that in the relationship of 
K-3. Ms. Kluttz said that with the compensation study and the $4 million one-time ask, it would go 
to their lowest-paid employees, such as teacher’s assistants, custodians, and bus drivers. She said 
the $4 million would take them from $17.25 to $20 an hour. She said she thought the State would 
give a 4.5% increase, but they weren’t sure. She said it was a safe way to protect the County dollars. 
 
Commissioner Powell said it seemed risky from her point of view. Ms. Kluttz said they planned to 
make it a permanent decision. She said the gap would decrease after the State gave them the 
increase. Dr. Hill clarified that the $4 million was to accelerate the increase in the lowest-paid 
employees to $20 that current year, and they wouldn’t need it next year, as the gap would have 
been closed.  
 
Vice Chair Jerrell said he appreciated that they were trending up. He said that with the aggregate 
data of kids of color, understanding that that would help, he asked how the idea of investments in 
teachers and staff contributed to the outcome as it related to student performance. 
 
Dr. Hill referenced slide 34, saying most funding was from the State. She said their alignment of 
achievement was coming from the other revenue sources. She also said she believed they were to 
maximize their budgets and spend conservatively.  
 
Ms. Kluttz said 75% of the budget was for salary and benefits, 54% came from the State, and a 
smaller percentage came locally. She said the impact on employees was highly dependent on what 
they received from the state.  
 
Dr. Hill said she recently spoke to the General Assembly and mentioned the importance of 
increasing teacher pay.  



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

36 

 

 
Ms. Thompson said that when they implemented the strategies over the next five years, they’d have 
better classroom quality and better student engagement results. She said retention had to be their 
priority. If there weren’t people to hire, they had to shift strategies.  
 
Nancy Brightwell, Chief of Recruitment, Retention, and Talent Development, said over one-third of 
their new teachers were not coming through the traditional teacher preparation program. She said 
they planned to expand what was a three-day onboarding to an eleven-day experience with 
ongoing support.  
 
Commissioner Griffin said that with what they give to Meck PreK, they would love to have a 
relationship with CMS to determine their success. He said he was focused on their students being 
able to compete in society so that economic and upward mobility was something within their reach 
because it currently was not.  
 
Dr. Balknight, Deputy Superintendent, said they had a great relationship with Meck PreK and 
continued to expand that relationship. She said they were working to expand data with the County 
in a new way. 
 

NOTE: A power outage interrupted the live stream. The remaining portion of the meeting 
after 1:33 p.m. was not captured on video. The remaining comments do not include every 

comment but a summary. 
 

Dr. Hill said they previously had 411 positions allotted to schools specific to demographics. She said 
about 75% of those positions were traded for something else due to the number of vacancies. She 
said they were reallocated positions based on the data. She said this included high school 
counselors, master math teachers, master literacy teachers at every single school, and assistant 
principals, along with other positions.   
 
Commissioner Cotham asked whether they discussed the value of retirement pay, such as the total 
benefits package, when recruiting new teachers. She also asked what teachers would pay on 
average for health insurance. Ms. Kluttz said they discussed retirement benefits, and self-coverage 
in relation to health insurance was around $25 to $30. She said it was around $600 monthly for a 
family, depending on the plan. 
  
Dr. Hill added that the State of North Carolina removed the healthcare benefit for anyone hired 
after 2001. They would not receive healthcare as a retirement benefit. 
 
Commissioner Leake asked how many low-performing schools they had at the time. Ms. Thompson 
said there were 58. Commissioner Leake asked how many there were the previous year. Ms. 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

37 

 

Thompson said she believed 50. Commissioner Leake asked which district did the best job with 
maintenance and asked for clarification concerning repairs. Mr. Schultz said they couldn’t speak to 
the repairs needed, but 30 schools were reviewed, and they prioritized needs at every school.  
 
Commissioner Altman thanked the school board members and said her concern was how they 
would make the numbers work. Referring to page 31 of the presentation, she said the BOCC 
percentage going to public schools had increased over 14 years. She said she struggled to 
understand how to keep the tax rate down and make the numbers work.  
 
Commissioner Meier asked how many teacher vacancies there were at the time. She said 112 were 
enrolled in the teacher residency program, with 200 enrolled for the following year. She asked if it 
was in partnership with the university or if they were being trained on the job.  
Ms. Brightwell said they provided all of the work for the program, which took three years to 
complete. Commissioner Meier asked if they were retained for work afterward. Ms. Brightwell said 
they retained about 90%. 
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell said the State kept trying to cripple public education. She said 
they had to invest in students and educators. She said it was up to them to bridge that gap. She 
asked them to clarify pages 29 and 30 and what they meant. Ms. Kluttz provided clarification of the 
pages.  
 
Commissioner Powell thanked the school board members, and stated she agreed with 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell. She said there were multiple ways the State was crippling 
students, and the burden fell on them. She also thanked them for focusing on K-3.  
 
Vice Chair Jerrell thanked his colleagues for their engagement and CMS and expressed confidence 
that they would find a way to support the community.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

May 08, 2024 

38 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Leake, seconded by Commissioner Cotham, and unanimously 
carried, that there being no further business to come before the Board that the meeting be 
adjourned at 4:25 p.m. 
 
 
 
         
_________________________________ ____________________________ 
Arlissa Eason, Deputy Clerk to the Board                                       Mark Jerrell, Vice Chair 


